
Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - November 20, 2018

Page | 1

PUBLIC NOTICE & AGENDA
PLAN COMMISSION

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511
7:00 PM

Tuesday, November 20, 2018

1. CALL TO ORDER AND ROLL CALL

2. MINUTES
2.a. Consideration of the Minutes of the November 7, 2018 Plan Commission meeting

Attachment

3. PUBLIC HEARINGS
3.a. Consideration of an Exception to Section 34.15(1) of the Architectural Review and Landscape

Code to allow the use of metal material on more than 25 percent of an exterior wall on a
non-industrial building for the property located at 548 Broad Street
Attachment

4. REPORTS

4.a. Consideration of a three-lot Extraterritorial Certified Survey Map for the property located at 2637
E Stateline Road in the Town of Turtle
Attachment

4.b. Consideration of a Petition for Direct Annexation for the property located at 1014 Froebel Drive
in the Town of Beloit
Attachment

4.c. Consideration of a request for a 20-foot Underground Electric Easement across the northern
edge of the vacant City-owned property located at 3015 Cranston Road
Attachment

5. STATUS REPORT ON PRIOR PLAN COMMISSION ITEMS

6. ADJOURNMENT

** Please note that, upon reasonable notice, at least 24 hours in advance, efforts will be made to accommodate the
needs of disabled individuals through appropriate aids and services. For additional information to request this service,
please contact the City Clerk's Office at 364-6680, 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511.

1

https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/269758/11-07-2018_Plan_Commission_Minutes.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/268839/November_20_Staff_Report_3_a__ARC-EXP-2018-01__548_Broad_Street.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/268840/November_20_Staff_Report_4_a__CSM-2018-06__2637_E_State_Line_Road.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/269818/November_20_Staff_Report_4_b___ANX-2018-02__1014_Froebel_Drive__TOB_.pdf
https://legistarweb-production.s3.amazonaws.com/uploads/attachment/pdf/269769/November_20_Staff_Report_4_c___RPB-2018-05__Underground_Electric_Easement.pdf


Beloit Plan Commission
Meeting Agenda - November 20, 2018

Page | 2

2



1 | P a g e  
 

 

Meeting Minutes 
Beloit City Plan Commission 

City Hall Forum - 100 State Street, Beloit, WI 53511 
7:00 PM 

Wednesday, November 7, 2018 

 

 
1. Call to Order and Roll Call 

The meeting was called to order at 7:00pm. Commissioners Weeden, Johnson, Faragher, 
Ruster, Finnegan, Robson, and City Councilor Prueschl were present. Commissioner Haynes 
was absent. 
 

2. Approval of the Minutes of the November 7, 2018 Meeting 
Commissioner Weeden moved to approve the minutes. Commissioner Robson seconded 
the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

3. Consideration of a Planned Unit Development (PUD) Master Land Use Plan for the 
property located at 2240 Cranston Road 
Community Development Director, Julie Christensen, presented the staff report and 
recommendation for agenda items 3 and 4. 
 
Commissioner Robson asked if there was going to be two fire hydrants instead of one, and 
if the access drives are straight enough for fire trucks. Ms. Christensen stated that the City 
will work through the site plan details in the final plan review. Commissioner Weeden 
asked if the driveway off Shopiere is owned by Casey’s, and if the City will have a shared 
driveway or a cross easement. Ms. Christensen stated that the driveway that is on site was 
intended to have access to this to 2240 Cranston Road. Commissioner Robson asked what 
use can be located under the electric easement. Ms. Christensen stated that buildings 
cannot be constructed underneath the easement. 
 
Chairman Faragher opened the public hearing.  Wayne Wegenke, 20320 W Mill Creek Tail, 
New Berlin, WI, developer of the property, mentioned that the site will have two fire 
hydrants. Commissioner Weeden questioned why Mr. Wegenke has the buildings all turned 
to the side and not facing the road. Mr. Wegenke stated that he put it that way so there 
was enough room to add the four buildings and making the parking lot accessible to visitors 
and the elderly. He indicated that if he turned the buildings, it would be a longer walk for 
the residents and their families to the front doors of the building.   

3



2 | P a g e  
 

Commissioner Weeden asked if the developer is extending the sidewalk along the entire 
width of the property. Ms. Christensen stated that the City is requiring the developer to 
extend the sidewalk installed by Casey’s along the entire property.  The City’s policy is to 
require sidewalks to be installed as properties are developed. 
 
Chairman Faragher closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Johnson move to approve the PUD. Commissioner Ruster seconded the 
motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

4. Consideration of a Zoning Map Amendment from C-2, Neighborhood Commercial District, 
to PUD, Planned Unit Development District, for the property located at 2240 Cranston 
Road 
Chairman Faragher opened and closed the public hearing. 
 
Commissioner Johnson move to approve the Zoning Map Amendment. Commissioner 
Ruster seconded the motion. The motion passed, voice vote. 
 

5. Status Report on Prior Plan Commission Items 
The next Plan Commission meeting has been moved to Tuesday, November 20, 2018 at 
7:00pm due to the Thanksgiving holiday. On the agenda will be an annexation from the 
Town of Beloit, a certified survey map, and an easement.  
 
At the City Council meeting, the City’s Comprehensive Plan update was approved. 
 

6. Adjournment 
Commissioner Robson moved to adjourn the meeting. Commissioner Finnegan seconded 
the motion. 
 
Meeting adjourned at 7:30pm. Minutes respectfully submitted by Amber DesRoberts.  

 
 

4



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  November 20, 2018 

Agenda Item:  3a 

File Number:  ARC/EXP-2018-01 

 

General Information 

 

Applicant:  CCI on behalf of Bryden Motors 
 
Owner:  BMI, LLC. 
 
Address/Location:  548 Broad Street Beloit WI 53511 
 
Applicant’s Request/Proposal:  Corporate Contractors Inc. (CCI) on behalf of Bryden Motors 
has filed an application for an Exception to Section 34.15(1) of the Architectural Review and 
Landscape Code to allow the installation of metal siding on a commercial building in a C-3, 
Community Commercial District, for the property located at 548 Broad Street. 
 

Staff Analysis 

 
1. Section 34.15(1) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code limits the placement of 

metal materials to no more than 25% of an exterior wall surface on non-industrial buildings.  
The submitted application indicates the placement of new steel siding would cover more 
than 25% of all exterior wall surfaces. The proposed material is a grey stucco finish insulated 
steel as shown in the attachments.  

2. This property is located in the Business Improvement District (BID) which requires elevated 
design standards for the exterior facade of structures. The Downtown Beloit Association 
reviewed this proposal at the September 19, 2018 meeting and was not in favor of the 
exterior material.  

3. On August 23, 2018, staff reviewed the submitted Architectural Review Application and 
approved the construction of the new Quick Lube Facility; however, staff did not approve 
the proposed metal siding.  The applicant has opted to start installing the metal panels, at 
their own risk of being denied the exception and having to remove the material. 

4. The application, photos, and wall specifications are attached to this report. 
 
Findings of Fact – Section 34.22(5) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code states that 
the City Council may grant exceptions to the regulations contained in this chapter when: 

 
(a) Such exceptions are in harmony with the general purpose and intent of this chapter;  

Granting the requested exception would be the first approval of metal siding on a 

5



permanent commercially zoned building within Business Improvement District (BID) 
since the Architectural Review Code was adopted in 2004. The proposed siding would be 
acceptable in an industrial application, as allowed by code.  

 
(b) The City Council finds that special circumstances exist involving the size, shape, 

topography, location or surroundings of the property referred to in the application  
There are no special circumstances involving the characteristics of the subject property. 
The applicant could use a variety of other siding materials. 

 
(c) Denial of the exception will cause unreasonable or unnecessary hardship;  

Denial of the requested exception will force the applicant to find an alternative siding 
material. The applicant can still use a durable, maintenance-free product, and can use 
metal as an accent material. Given this fact and the compelling public purposes 
achieved by the 25 percent metal cap, the applicant will not face unreasonable or 
unnecessary hardship. 

 
(d) Granting the exception will not cause substantial injury to the value of other property 

in the vicinity nor be detrimental to the general welfare of the neighborhood or the 
public.  
Granting the exception would allow the installation of metal siding that is designed for 
industrial buildings to be installed on a visible, permanent commercial building. Allowing 
vertical metal siding in a commercial district may negatively impact property values in 
the vicinity, undermine the Downtown Beloit Design Guidelines, and will set a bad 
precedent City-wide. 

 
City of Beloit Comprehensive and Strategic Plan:  The City’s Comprehensive Plan recommends 
Community Commercial uses. Consideration of this request supports Strategic Goal #3, to 
create and sustain economic and residential growth.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends denial of an Exception to Section 
34.15(1) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code to allow the use of metal materials on 
more than 25 percent of an exterior wall on a non-industrial building in the C-3, Community 
Commercial District, for the property located at 548 Broad Street based on the above Findings 
of Fact. 
 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location & Zoning Map, Application, Photos, Specifications, Public Notice, and 
Mailing List. 
 
  

6



 
 

 
 

7



             

View from Broad Street looking east 
towards Short Street  

View from Broad Street looking west 
towards Prospect Street  

8



   
 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 
 

Exterior materials of front of building 
facing Broad Street 

9



 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

View from behind the Quick Lube 
looking north towards Broad Street  

10



 11



 
12



 

13



 

14



 
 

15



 
  

16



 
 

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC 
 

November 8, 2018 

 

To Whom It May Concern: 

 

Corporate Contractors Inc. (CCI) on behalf of Bryden Motors has filed an application for an 

Exception to Section 34.15(1) of the Architectural Review and Landscape Code to allow the 

exterior walls on new Quick Lube Facility to be more than 25 percent metal in a C-3, 

Community Commercial District, for the property located at: 

 

548 Broad Street. 

 

The applicant has been hired to construct a new 4,061 square foot Quick Lube Facility.  The 

metal façade limitation applies to this project because metal siding is only allowed up to 25% 

within commercial zoning district. This property is also located in the Business Improvement 

District (BID) which requires elevated design standards for the exterior facade of structures.  

 

The following public hearings will be held regarding this proposed Exception to the 

Architectural Review and Landscape Code: 

 

City Plan Commission:  Tuesday November 20, 2018 at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the 

matter can be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

City Council:  Monday, December 3, 2018, at 7:00 PM, or as soon thereafter as the matter can 

be heard in The Forum, Beloit City Hall, 100 State Street. 

 

THE PUBLIC IS INVITED TO ATTEND THESE HEARINGS. 
 

We are interested in your opinion. 
 

Anyone bringing handouts to the Plan Commission meeting must bring ten (10) copies and 

submit them to the Recording Secretary before the meeting begins.  Staff is unable to leave the 

meeting area to make copies. 

 

For additional information, please contact Hilary Rottmann in the Planning & Building 

Service Division at (608) 364-6708 or rottmannh@beloitwi.gov.  Comments will be accepted via 

telephone, email, and U.S. Mail. 

 

 

 

 

17

mailto:rottmannh@beloitwi.gov


 

 

BMI LLC 

548 Broad Street 

Beloit, WI 53511 

 

Roger Bryden OOPS II LLC 

548 Broad Street 

Beloit, WI 53511 

 

Braun Leasing LTD 

510 Broad Street 

Beloit, WI 53511 

 

BMO Harris Bank 

500 E. Grand Ave 

Beloit, WI 53511 

 

BMA Harris Bank NA 

Attn: Corporate Real Estate 

111 W. Monroe Street 

Chicago, IL 60603 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

18



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION 
 
Plan Commission Meeting Date:  November 20, 2018 

Agenda Item: 4a 

File Number:  CSM-2018-06 

 

General Information 

 

Applicant:  R.H. Batterman & Co. Inc., 2857 Bartells Drive Beloit, WI 53511 
 
Owner:  Richard J. Walsh Trust 
 
Address/Location:  2637 E. State Line Road 
 
Applicant’s Request:  The applicant is proposing to subdivide the property to satisfy the 
distributions of the Certificate of Trust of Richard J. Wash. The parent parcel is approximately 
50.3 acres.  The owner is proposing to divide the parent parcel into 3 lots via CSM.   
 
Jurisdiction:  Town of Turtle (Extraterritorial Jurisdiction)  
 

Staff Analysis 

 
Existing Conditions:  The property at 2637 State Line Road is located in the Town of Turtle east 
of Interstate 90 and north of the Illinois border. The 50.3 acre parcel contains several farm 
buildings and agricultural land.  It is currently zoned AE, Agricultural Farmland District.  This 
zoning designation exclusively provides for agricultural uses and uses compatible with 
agriculture.  
 
Surrounding Land Use and Zoning:  To the North, East, and South, properties are zoned AE, 
Agricultural Farmland. To the West across the expressway within the City Limits of Beloit, land 
is zoned M-2 General Manufacturing.   
 
Proposed Land Use and Zoning:  The owner intends to keep all three proposed lots zoned AE 
and to keep the land in agricultural production.   
 
City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan:  The 50.3 acre parcel is planned for future Business Park. 
Business Park land uses include high-quality indoor manufacturing, warehousing, distribution, 
office, research and development, recreational, and business park support uses.  
 
Municipal Utilities:  These properties are not served by municipal utilities.   
 

19



Review Agent Comments:  The proposed Certified Survey Map (CSM) was sent to the City of 
Beloit Fire Department, Engineering Division, and Water Resources Division and Alliant Energy, 
AT&T and Charter. Comments were received from engineering requesting a 100 foot wide right-
of-way be dedicated along State Line road.   
 
Additional Comments:  A copy of the three-lot Preliminary Certified Survey Map is attached.  It 
indicates that Lot 1 which will be 25.2 acres, Lot 2 will be 20.4 acres, and Lot will be 3 3.7 acres. 
The trust distribution described a land locked parcel for proposed Lot 1 with no frontage to 
State Line Road. The proposal makes an effort to meet the intent of the distribution while also 
adhering to the ordinance as much as possible. Proposed Lot 1 includes a 100-foot wide 
connection to State Line Road.   

The Rock County Planning and Development Committee is currently in the process of reviewing 
of this CSM. 

 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached three-lot 
Certified Survey Map (CSM) for the property located at 2637 State Line Road, in the Town of 
Turtle, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. The final CSM shall be recorded with the Rock County Register of Deeds by December 
31, 2019 and a copy provided to the Planning and Building Services Division. 
 

 
ATTACHMENTS:  Location & Zoning Map, Preliminary Certified Survey Map, Rock County CSM 
application and City of Beloit CSM application 
 
Map, CSM, Engineering Comments, Application, and Resolution  
 
 
  

20



 
 
 

21



 

22



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

23



  

24



 
25



 
26



 27



 
28



 
 
 

 

29



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: November 20, 2018

Agenda Item: 4b

File Number: ANX-2018-02

General Information

Applicant: Suzanne Dammen

Owner: Suzanne Dammen

Address/Location: 1014 Froebel Drive

Applicant’s Request: Petition for (Direct) Annexation for the property located at 1014 Froebel
Drive in the Town of Beloit. The City Council is expected to formally accept the applicant’s
petition on November 19, 2018.

Jurisdiction: Town of Beloit (Outside of Area Proposed for Incorporation as a Village)

Staff Analysis

Existing Conditions: The applicant resides in the existing single-family dwelling on the subject
property. The existing septic system on the subject property is failing and needs to be replaced.
The applicant is in the process of selling the property, and the failing septic system is a barrier
to the sale of the property. Therefore, the applicant would like to be connected to the City’s
sanitary sewer system. The subject property must be located in the City in order to connect to
the City’s sewer system. The applicant submitted an identical annexation request in 2010, but
subsequently withdrew that request prior to the public meetings.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: The subject property is zoned R1, Single-Family Residential
District (Town Zoning). The attached Location & Zoning Map shows the location of this property
and the zoning of the surrounding area. The adjacent zoning and land uses are as follows:

o North: R1, Single-Family Residential District, Vacant Land (TOB)
o South: R1, Single-Family Residential District, Accessory Buildings & Uses (TOB)
o East: R1, Single-Family Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling (TOB)
o West: R1, Single-Family Residential District, Single-Family Dwelling (TOB)

Municipal Utilities: The City has an existing sanitary sewer main in Froebel Drive in front of the
property located at 1030 Froebel Drive, which was annexed to the City in 1992. The City
Engineer has determined that this sanitary sewer line can be extended to the east to provide

30



sanitary sewer service to the subject property after annexation. The subject property is located
within the City’s 208 Sewer Service Area. Rock County’s 208 Water Quality Plan specifies that
this area will be served by the City’s public sanitary sewer system.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Future Land Use Map recommends
Single-Family Residential – Urban uses for the subject property. The proposed annexation and
sewer connection are consistent with this recommendation. This request supports Strategic
Goal #1 by creating and sustaining safe and healthy neighborhoods and Goal #5 by creating and
sustaining high quality infrastructure and connectivity.

Boundary Continuity: The Annexation Plat also includes a 60’ wide by 220’ long section of
Froebel Drive right-of-way, which will make the subject property contiguous to the City of
Beloit. The property located at 1022 Froebel Drive will remain in the Town of Beloit for now but
the adjacent street will be City of Beloit right-of-way. The Wisconsin Department of
Administration’s Municipal Boundary Review Office and the Town of Beloit Clerk have been
notified of this annexation request.

Future Zoning Classification: When property is annexed to the City, a temporary zoning
classification must be assigned until an Ordinance approving a Zoning Map Amendment is
adopted by the City Council. Staff recommends that the temporary zoning classification for this
property be R-1A, Single-Family Residential District, because of the size, location, and
surrounding land uses of the property. A Zoning Map Amendment with a recommendation for a
permanent zoning classification will be processed by staff in the near future.

Sustainability Criteria: A reduction in the number of septic systems located in urbanized areas
will reduce groundwater contamination. The provision of sewer service will satisfy the owner’s
need for a healthy and sanitary dwelling.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Petition for
Annexation to the City of Beloit for the property located at 1014 Froebel Drive in the Town of
Beloit and assignment of a temporary zoning district classification of R-1A, Single-Family
Residential.

ATTACHMENTS: Location & Zoning Map, Petition for Annexation, Plat, & Failing Septic Letter.

31



November 20 Staff Report 4b, ANX-2018-02, 1014 Froebel Drive (TOB)

32



November 20 Staff Report 4b, ANX-2018-02, 1014 Froebel Drive (TOB)

33



November 20 Staff Report 4b, ANX-2018-02, 1014 Froebel Drive (TOB)

34



November 20 Staff Report 4b, ANX-2018-02, 1014 Froebel Drive (TOB)

35



REPORT TO THE PLAN COMMISSION

Plan Commission Meeting Date: November 20, 2018

Agenda Item: 4c

File Number: RPB-2018-05

General Information

Applicant: Wisconsin Power & Light Co. DBA Alliant Energy

Owner: City of Beloit

Address/Location: 3015 Cranston Road

Applicant’s Request: The applicant has requested a 20-foot Underground Electric Easement across the
northern edge of the vacant City-owned property located at 3015 Cranston Road. The proposed easement will
allow the applicant to install underground electric lines and related facilities such as conduit, cables,
transformers, etc.

Staff Analysis

Existing Conditions: The subject property is a vacant, 7-acre parcel located between the Canadian Pacific
Railroad tracks and Interstate 39-90. The subject property is bisected by Springbrook Creek and much of the
subject property is located in the 100-year floodplain.

Surrounding Land Use and Zoning: There is agricultural land to the west and south of the subject property
owned by Frito-Lay, so the subject property does not have any local street frontage. The railroad tracks lie to
the north and the interstate lies to the east. The subject property and all of the adjacent parcels are zoned M-
2, General Manufacturing District.

City of Beloit Comprehensive Plan and Strategic Plan: The Future Land Use Map recommends General
Industrial uses. This request supports Strategic Goal #5 by creating and sustaining high quality infrastructure
and connectivity.

Additional Comments: As shown on Exhibit B, the proposed 20-foot easement area includes the
northernmost 20 feet of the parcel along the railroad right-of-way. The proposed easement area partially
overlaps with an easement granted to American Transmission Company in 2016 to allow overhead
transmission lines. The applicant has offered compensation in the amount of $2,763 for the easement rights.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
The Planning & Building Services Division recommends approval of the attached Underground Electric
Easement across part of the City-owned property located at 3015 Cranston Road.

ATTACHMENTS: Location Map, Proposed Easement, and Easement Exhibits
36



Location Map – 3015 Cranston Road

37



38



39



40



41


	Plan Commission Agenda
	2018-803 - Attachment
	2018-804 - Attachment
	2018-807 - Attachment
	2018-805 - Attachment
	2018-806 - Attachment

